
           

REGULAR MEETING OF THE
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

TUESDAY, APRIL 15, 2025

ADDISON TOWN HALL
5300 BELT LINE ROAD, DALLAS, TX 75254

6:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING

The Planning and Zoning Commission meeting and public hearing will be
held at the Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Road, Dalla, Texas 75254 on

Tuesday, April 15, 2025 at 6 pm.  For more information on the meeting
location and ways to view and/or present comments, please contact Korrie

Becht prior to 3:00 pm on the day of the meeting at 972-450-2848 or by
emailing zoninginput@addisontx.gov. For more detailed instructions on how
to participate in this meeting, visit our Agenda Page. The meeting will be live

streamed on Addison's website at www.addisontx.gov.
 

           
Call Meeting to Order
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Planning & Zoning Commission Purpose Statement
 

Consent Agenda:  All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the Planning and
Zoning Commission and will be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration
of an item is requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.
 

1. Consider Action on the minutes from the March 18, 2025 Planning and
Zoning Commission Meeting.

 

 
Page 1 

 

mailto:zoninginput@addisontx.gov
http://www.addisontexas.net/
http://www.addisontexas.net/


 

2. Consider Action on a Final Plat for the COG/Beltway Addition, Block A
Lots 1X, 2X, 3-8, 9X, 10X, 11-9, 20X, 21-26 and 37X, for a townhouse
development on 1.804± acres located at south of Beltway Drive and
approximately 190 feet west of Midway Road, addressed as 101-111 and
121-135 Reserve Circle and 220-237 North Reserve Lane.

 

Citizen Comments:  At this time citizens will be allowed to speak on any matter other than personnel
matters under litigation, for a length of time not to exceed three minutes. No P&Z action or discussion may take
place on any matter until such matter has been placed on an agenda and posted in accordance with law.
 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The Planning & Zoning Commission reserves the right to meet in
Executive Session closed to the public at any time in the course of this meeting
to discuss matters listed on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open
Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071
(private consultation with the attorney for the City). Any decision held on such
matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the conclusion of
the Executive Session.
 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES.  PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7017 AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN

ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.

POSTED BY:     _______________________________________
                           Korrie Becht, Development Services Assistant Director
DATE POSTED: ______________________________________
TIME POSTED:  ______________________________________
DATE REMOVED FROM BULLETIN BOARD:  ______________________
REMOVED BY:  ______________________________________

 
Page 2 

 



   

Planning & Zoning Commission 1.        
Meeting Date: 04/15/2025  

Agenda Caption:
Consider Action on the minutes from the March 18, 2025 Planning and Zoning
Commission Meeting.

Staff Report:
The minutes from the March 18, 2025 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting
have been prepared for consideration.

Recommendation:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes of the March 18, 2025 P&Z Meeting 



OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 
March 18, 2025 
6:00 P.M. - Council Chambers
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Road
 

Present:  Chair Denise Fansler; Vice Chair Tom Braun; Commissioner Chelsey Smith;
Commissioner Alan Then; Commissioner Tyler Wright 

Absent:  Commissioner Jimmy Barker; Commissioner EJ Copeland 

 

               
Call Meeting to Order
 
  Chair Fansler called the meeting to order.
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 
  Chair Fansler led the Pledge of Allegiance.
 

Planning & Zoning Commission Purpose Statement
 
  Chair Fansler recited the Planning and Zoning Commission Purpose

Statement.
 

Consent Agenda:  All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered
routine by the Planning and Zoning Commission and will be enacted by one
motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is
requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.
 
1. Consider Action on the minutes from the February 18, 2025 Planning and

Zoning Commission Meeting.
  

 
2. Consider action on a Preliminary Plat for the AMLI Treehouse Addition 2,

Block 1, Lots 1-10, 1A, 11-18, 18X, 19-23, 23X, 24-28 and 29X, for a
mixed-use development on 8.2± acres located at the southwest corner of
the intersection of Midway Road and Beltway Drive. Case
PP2025-01/AMLI Treehouse Addition 2. 

  

 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY March 18, 2025



  Motion: Recommend approval of the Consent Agenda, as presented.
 

  Moved by Vice Chair Tom Braun, Seconded by Commissioner Tyler
Wright 

  AYE:  Chair Denise Fansler, Vice Chair Tom Braun, Commissioner
Chelsey Smith, Commissioner Alan Then, Commissioner Tyler
Wright 

Passed 
 
Regular Agenda:
 
1. Hold a public hearing, present, discuss, and consider action on a request

for a Special Use Permit (SUP) for property located at 5100 Belt Line
Road, Suite 612, that is currently zoned Planned Development (PD),
through Ordinance Nos. O23-03, to allow indoor baseball inspired games
and a restaurant with the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises
consumption. Case 1928-SUP/5100 Belt Line Road, Suite 612 (Batbox).

  

 
  Korrie Becht, Assistant Director of Development Services, presented a

request for a Special Use Permit (SUP) for property located at 5100 Belt
Line Road, Suite 612 that is currently zoned Planned Developmnet,
through Ordinance No. O23-03, to allow indoor entertainment (baseball)
and a restaurant with the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises
consumption.

Batbox is a technology infused baseball experience, offering a full-service
restaurant and bar. The concept first originated in Mexico and currently
has three locations in Mexico. The Addison location is proposed to be the
first venue in the U.S. The game uses the Strikezone technology, which
combines HD screen simulation and high-speed camera sensors to keep
score and track gameplay. Batbox offers four game modes and online
tournaments, including home run derby, pitching challenge, batting
challenge, and 3,6,9 inning games. The restaurant offers a menu inspired
by ball park favorites and handcrafted cocktails. 

Staff recommends approval of the request with the following condition: 
Batbox operations shall close to the public no later than 2:00am. 

Public Hearing: No individuals provided input during the public hearing.

Motion: Recommend approval with conditions, as presented.
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY March 18, 2025



 

  Moved by Commissioner Tyler Wright, Seconded by Commissioner Alan
Then 

  AYE:  Chair Denise Fansler, Vice Chair Tom Braun, Commissioner
Chelsey Smith, Commissioner Alan Then, Commissioner Tyler
Wright 

Passed 
 
2. Hold a public hearing, present, discuss, and consider action on a request

for a Special Use Permit (SUP) for property located at 4951 Belt Line
Road, that is currently zoned Local Retail (LR), to allow a restaurant with
the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption. Case
1930-SUP/4951 Belt Line Road (Mexican Sugar). 

  

 
  Lesley Nyp, Director of Development and Neighborhood Services,

presented a request for a Special Use Permit (SUP) for property located
at 4951 Belt Line Road, that is currently zoned Local Retail (LR) to
allow a restaurant with the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises
consumption. 

Mexican Sugar is a full-service restaurant featuring traditional Mexican
flavors with a modern twist. The operator has several locations in the
Metroplex, including Plano, Las Colinas, and Uptown Dallas. The owner,
FB Society, also operates concepts like Ida Claire, which has a location
in Addison. This proposal includes an interior and exterior remodel to
refresh the site. There is also a 952 square foot patio expansion near the
building entry. Mexican Sugar proposes to offer alcoholic beverages for
on-premises consumption. The proposed operating hours are 11:00 am –
10:00 pm, Monday through Thursday, 11:00 am – 11:00 pm, Friday and
Saturday, and 10:00 am – 9:00 pm on Sundays. It is anticipated that
Mexican Sugar will have approximately 125 employees, with up to 65
present during peak hours. 

Staff recommends approval of these requests, with the following
conditions:  

Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for Mexican Sugar,
easements must be recorded via separate instrument as shown on
the site plan for pedestrian connectivity purposes.  
Repeal previous Special Use Ordinance’s for the subject property
including Ordinance No. 085-027, 089-036, 094-023, and 014-002. 

Public Hearing: The following individual spoke during the public hearing. 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY March 18, 2025



On: Zack Smutzer, 4925 Marcus Avenue

Motion: Recommend approval with conditions, as presented.
 

  Moved by Vice Chair Tom Braun, Seconded by Commissioner Chelsey
Smith 

  AYE:  Chair Denise Fansler, Vice Chair Tom Braun, Commissioner
Chelsey Smith, Commissioner Alan Then, Commissioner Tyler
Wright 

Passed 
 
Citizen Comments:  At this time citizens will be allowed to speak on any matter other than personnel
matters under litigation, for a length of time not to exceed three minutes. No P&Z action or discussion may take
place on any matter until such matter has been placed on an agenda and posted in accordance with law.

 
  The following individual spoke during the citizen comment: 

Zack Smutzer, 4925 Marcus Avenue

 

Adjourn Meeting
 
NOTE: The Planning & Zoning Commission reserves the right to meet in
Executive Session closed to the public at any time in the course of this meeting
to discuss matters listed on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open
Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071
(private consultation with the attorney for the City). Any decision held on such
matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the conclusion of
the Executive Session.
 

There being no further business before the Commission, the meeting was
adjourned.

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY March 18, 2025



   

Planning & Zoning Commission 2.        
Meeting Date: 04/15/2025  

Agenda Caption:
Consider Action on a Final Plat for the COG/Beltway Addition, Block A Lots 1X,
2X, 3-8, 9X, 10X, 11-9, 20X, 21-26 and 37X, for a townhouse development on
1.804± acres located at south of Beltway Drive and approximately 190 feet west
of Midway Road, addressed as 101-111 and 121-135 Reserve Circle and
220-237 North Reserve Lane.

Recommendation:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
R2025-02 Staff Report 
R2025-02 Final Plat 



R2025-02 

 
Case R2025-02/COG/Beltway Addition. Consider Action on a Final Plat for the 
COG/Beltway Addition, Block A Lots 1X, 2X, 3-8, 9X, 10X, 11-9, 20X, 21-26 and 37X, for 
a townhouse development on 1.804± acres located at south of Beltway Drive and 
approximately 190 feet west of Midway Road, addressed as 101-111 and 121-135 
Reserve Circle and 220-237 North Reserve Lane 
 

LOCATION MAP 

 



 

 
 
 
 

April 15, 2025 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
RE: R2025-02/COG/Beltway Addition (101-111 

and 121-135 Reserve Circle and 220-237 
North Reserve Lane) 

 
LOCATION: 1.804 acres south of Beltway Drive and 

approximately 190 feet west of Midway 
Road. (Application Date: 03/17/2025) 

 
REQUEST: Approval of a Final Plat 
 
APPLICANT: Jordan Zongol, TRJ Services LLC dba 

Cobalt Homes 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background: The subject property is located south of Beltway Drive and approximately 
190 feet west of Midway Road. On October 11, 2022, this 1.804-acre site received 
development plan approval for the Addison Reserve Townhomes, a 31-unit townhome 
development with public open space and common area lots (Case No. 1856-Z).  
 
The purpose of this plat is to establish the following items: 

• Proposed Site Boundary; 

• 31 townhome lots (Lots 3-8, 11-19, 21-28, and 29-36); 

• Private Right-of-Ways for North Reserve Lane and Reserve Circle; and 

• 6 Common Spaces Lots (Lots 1X*, 2X, 9X, 10X, 20X, and 37X). 
o *Lot 1X is anticipated to be dedicated to the Town and be used as public 

open space following completion of proposed improvements. 
 
This plat will dedicate easements to be used for fire, access, and utilities. Additionally, 
once completed, Lot 1X, located along the western property boundary, will be dedicated 
to the Town for public use. Dedication will occur following completion of trail, pedestrian 
amenities, and landscaping improvements. 
 
This plat also proposes to abandon existing access and utility easements, which are being 
relocated to accommodate the new development plan. 
 
Regulatory Compliance: The final plat has been reviewed by Town staff and it complies 
with the Town’s subdivision regulations and development standards.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the final plat. 






	Agenda
	AI 5842 Minutes of March 18, 2025 Meeting
	       ATT_Minutes of the March 18, 2025 PandZ Meeting
	AI 5843 Final Plat - COG/Beltway Addition
	       ATT_R2025-02 Staff Report
	       ATT_R2025-02 Final Plat

